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1 Summary
This report has been prepared and submitted pursuant to the European Commission Decision No 2009/442/EC of 5 June 2009 implementing Directive 2007/2/EC of the European Parliament and the Council as regards monitoring and reporting. The report contains information on the establishment and use of infrastructure for geospatial information in the Republic of Latvia.
2 Introduction
Directive 2007/2/EC of the European Parliament and the Council establishing an Infrastructure for Spatial Information in the European Community (INSPIRE) came in force on 15 May 2007 [1]. Cabinet Order No 718 of 20 November 2007 On the concept of development of geospatial information in Latvia [2] and Cabinet Order No 737 of 27 November 2007 On development of a common national portal for geospatial information [3] specify responsibilities of ministries and authorities as regards technical activities for the implementation of the INSPIRE directive – the preparation of geospatial data and metadata and establishment of a common national geospatial information portal.
Cabinet Order No 718 of 20 November 2007 [2] approved the Concept of development of geospatial information in Latvia containing provisions for the establishment of infrastructure for geospatial information in Latvia and the preparation of a Law on Geospatial information. This Order also assigns the Ministry of Defence as the authority responsible for coordinating the implementation of the INSPIRE directive in Latvia.
Cabinet Order No 737 of 27 November 2007 [3] approved a concept of development of a common national geospatial information portal containing a technological solution enabling the geoportal to operate as a single point of access to geospatial information according to the principle of a “one-stop agency”. This order assigned the former Secretariat of the Minister for special assignments in electronic government affairs as the authority responsible for establishing the geospatial information portal (the geoportal). The tasks and responsibilities of the Secretariat were transferred to the Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs on 1 June 2009.
The provisions of the INSPIRE directive have been fully transposed in the legislation of Latvia by the Law on Geospatial information which came in force on 13 January 2010 [4]. The provisions of the INSPIRE directive as regards access to information, protection of data of private individuals, protection of intellectual property rights and tasks for local authorities for the obtaining and processing of geospatial information are set out in existing legislation – the Law on State Administration, the Law on Freedom of information, the Law on Protection of data of private individuals, the Copyright law, and Cabinet Regulations No 1148 of 6 October 2009 Regulations of planning of territories of local authorities. The Law on Geospatial information assigns the Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs as the administrator of the geoportal.
On 3 February 2010, the corresponding information on the transposition of the INSPIRE directive was published in the database of national execution measures [5].
This Report contains information regarding the implementation of the INSPIRE directive in Latvia obtained as a result of summarising data provided by responsible officers of the ministries involved in the establishment of the infrastructure for geospatial information, within their competence. Aside from the Ministry of Defence, ten other ministries are involved: the Ministry of the Environment, the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of Agriculture, the Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs, the Ministry of Transport, the Ministry of the Interior, the Ministry of Education and Science, the Ministry of Economic Affairs, the Ministry of Healthcare and the Ministry of Culture. Cabinet Regulations No 718 assigned each ministry involved as a ministry responsible or co-responsible for the preparation and updating of geospatial data and their metadata corresponding to the themes of data specified in the INSPIRE directive.
3 Abbreviations used
INSPIRE directive
Directive 2007/2/EC of the European Parliament and the Council
MS


Member State
GII


geospatial information infrastructure
GPS


Global Positioning System
LAD


Rural Support Service
LGIA 


State Agency “Geospatial information agency of Latvia”
LVGMC


VSIA “Latvijas Vides, ģeoloģijas un meteoroloģijas centrs” (State-owned limited 

liability company “Latvian Environment, geology and meteorology center)
LVL


Latvian monetary unit - Lats
VRAA


State Agency for Regional Development
VAS


State-owned stock company
VSIA


State-owned limited liability company
VZD


State Land Service
4 Coordination and quality assurance (Art. 12)
4.1 Coordination (Art. 12.1.)
4.1.1 Member State point of contact
Name and contact information
	Contact point in Latvia

	Name of the public authority
	Latvijas Ģeotelpiskās informācijas aģentūra (Geospatial information agency of Latvia)

	Contact information:
	

	Mailing address
	O.Vācieša iela 43, Rīga, LV-1004

	Telephone number
	+371 - 67064201

	Telefax number
	+371 – 67064209

	Email address
	info[at]lgia.gov.lv

	Organisation’s website URL
	www.lgia.gov.lv

	Contact person (if available)
	Mr Harijs Baranovs

	Telephone number
	+371 – 67064204

	Email address
	Harijs.Baranovs[at]lgia.gov.lv

	Contact person - substitute (if available)
	-

	Telephone number
	-

	Email address
	-


Functions and responsibility
The Geospatial information agency of Latvia (LGIA) is a leading authority in the implementation of the national policy of Latvia in geodesy, cartography, and geospatial information. Pursuant to the Law on Geospatial information [4], LGIA has the following tasks:

1. to establish and maintain the national geodetic system and a database of geodetic points;

2. to establish and maintain a system of permanent global positioning base stations "Latvijas Pozicionēšanas sistēma" (Latvian Positioning System – LatPos);

3. to ensure geodetic services related to geomagnetic and gravimetric measurements and other geodetic services that should be available to the public;

4. to provide expert opinion on results of geodetic work on request;

5. to obtain, prepare and update the following geospatial reference data for civil and military needs:

a. imagery of terrestrial surface, remote sensing and orthophoto within the scale range of 1:50 000 - 1:2 000

b. digital terrain and surface imagery for topographic plans and maps within the scale range of 1:250 000 - 1:10 000;

c. geospatial information included in topographic plans and maps within the scale range of 1:250 000 - 1:2 000; and
d. geospatial reference data to support the tasks of the National Armed Forces and their participation in the North Atlantic Treaty Organisation;
6. to summarise information on toponyms necessary for geodetic and cartographic activities in the Toponyms database;
7. to determine geodetic coordinates of border signs marking the border of the Republic of Latvia and ensure that they are displayed on maps, in accordance with international agreements.

LGIA is a body reporting to the Ministry of Defence, with its operations supervised by the Minister for Defence.

4.1.2 Coordination structure
Name and contact information
	Coordinating structure supporting the MSCP

	Name of the coordination structure
	Aizsardzības ministrijas Krīzes vadības departamenta Ģeotelpiskās informācijas politikas plānošanas un uzraudzības nodaļa – Section for Geospatial Policy Planning and Supervision of the Crisis Management Department, Ministry of Defence

	Contact information:
	

	Mailing address
	Kr. Valdemāra iela 10/12, Rīga, LV-1473

	Telephone number
	+371 67335184

	Telefax number
	+371 67212307

	Email address
	geoinfo[at]mod.gov.lv

	Organisation’s website URL
	www.mod.gov.lv

	Contact person (if available)
	Mrs Dina Giluce

	Telephone number
	+371 67335184

	Email address
	Dina.Giluce[at]mod.gov.lv

	Contact person - substitute (if available)
	Mr Oskars Kreilis

	Telephone number
	+371 67335095

	Email address
	Oskars.Kreilis[at]mod.gov.lv

	Date and period of mandate 
	Starting on 13 January 2010


Functions and responsibility
The Ministry of Defence has been assigned responsibility [6] for organising and coordinating the implementation of national policy in geodesy, cartography and geospatial information. This responsibility has been delegated to the Section for Geospatial Policy Planning and Supervision of the Crisis Management Department, Ministry of Defence.
The Ministry of Defence has prepared a Concept of development of geospatial information in Latvia which enables the establishment of geospatial information infrastructure in Latvia; by Cabinet Regulations No 718 of 20 November 2007 [2], the Ministry has been assigned as the authority responsible for coordinating the implementation of the INSPIRE directive in Latvia.
Pursuant to the Law on Geospatial information [4], the Ministry of Defence and the Ministry of the Environment shall cooperate to represent the Republic of Latvia in the EU institutions in matters concerning the establishment of the infrastructure for geospatial information in the Community and coordination and approval of draft regulations governing the operation of the infrastructure by the EU institutions.
The Head of the Section for Geospatial Information Policy Planning and Supervision Dina Giluce is the representative of the Republic of Latvia in the INSPIRE Committee.
Organisation structure
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Relations with third parties
Pursuant to the Law on Geospatial information [4], societies and foundations or their unions (such as the Latvian Association of Surveyors and the Association of Cartographers and Geodesists of Latvia) uniting private individuals and legal entities involved in the field of geospatial information may participate in the implementation of the national policy for geospatial information by discussing regulations and standards and providing opinions, promoting the participation of the public in the circulation of geospatial information and improving professional qualification.
Survey of work experience and procedures
In order to ensure the prompt and effective resolution of issues related to implementing the INSPIRE directive, the Ministry of Defence, on the basis of tasks set out in the Law on Geospatial information, has established a permanent working group including representatives of all ministries involved in establishing the infrastructure of geospatial information. In all, there are ten ministries involved: the Ministry of the Environment, the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of Agriculture, the Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs, the Ministry of Transport, the Ministry of the Interior, the Ministry of Education and Science, the Ministry of Economic Affairs, the Ministry of Healthcare and the Ministry of Culture. This working group held two meetings in the first half of 2010 to discuss the participation of holders of geospatial data in the process of development of specifications for the themes of data under Annexes II and III to the INSPIRE directive, the preparation of the national report on the implementation of the INSPIRE directive in Latvia, the preparation of field-specific policy planning documents for 2011 – 2013, and the geospatial reference data necessary for the implementation of these field policies.
4.1.3 Notes on the supervision and reporting process
Pursuant to Cabinet Regulations No 718 of 20 November 2007 [2], in spring of this year the Ministry of Defence, as the authority responsible for coordinating the implementation of the INSPIRE directive, submitted to the Cabinet an information report on the transposition of the INSPIRE directive, the current situation and activities planned in order to start practical implementation of the INSPIRE directive [12]. The report describes also the working procedures applied and cooperation and coordination among the authorities in Latvia and other institutions.
4.2 Quality assurance (Art. 12.2.)
4.2.1 Procedures for assurance of quality
In most cases, the holders of geospatial data have developed their own internal procedures to ensure the quality of geospatial data. These procedures have been introduced using both organisation of the process of work and technological instruments for assessment of the quality of data.
For example:
LGIA has introduced a multi-stage mechanism for the control of quality of geospatial reference data. The inspection process comprises automated, manual and field data collection methods. The central database contains data subjected to the data quality assessment.
The procedure of preparing the land register data kept by the Rural Support Service (LAD) has been approved, all data are stored in a single central database, and the data are subjected to topological verification using computer programmes.
The quality of data kept by the State Forest Service and the State Plant Protection Service is verified at the point of input of data in the central database using parameters specified in data classification catalogues and in accordance with geometry requirements for geospatial objects (verification of data and display of errors are automatic).
The State Land Service (VZD) has ensured that the quality of data complies with requirements specified in regulations and the single data specification. Data are subjected to various geospatial object topology verifications and are compared with other sets of geospatial reference data – orthophoto maps and state motorways.
VAS „Latvijas Jūras administrācija” (State-owned joint stock company Maritime Administration of Latvia) has introduced the ISO 9001:2000 quality assurance system comprising also the preparation of marine navigation maps. Certification and supervision is carried out by Lloyd’s Register. 

The procedures of the quality management system embrace all operations of the Hydrography service:

· Hydrographic measurements and studies;

· The gathering of navigational information, issue of navigation-related warnings and notices;

· Means of navigation;

· The preparation and publishing of marine navigation maps.
The quality of data is verified using special analysis programmes. Additional quality checks are carried out by the centre for the distribution of electronic navigational charts PRIMAR [15].

The Civil Aviation Agency and VAS “Latvijas Gaisa satiksme” (State-owned joint stock company Latvian Air Traffic) have introduced the ISO 9001:2000 quality assurance system, embracing also the publishing of air navigation maps and records of objects posing a potential threat to aircraft flight.
4.2.2 Analysis of problems related to quality assurance
Two problems have been identified as significant for assuring the quality of data:

· limited funds for assuring quality, which results in the simplification of methods for quality verification and identification of errors embracing only the most important quality criteria;
· insufficient shared use of geospatial data, as a result of which the sets of geospatial information that are created are not always precisely tied up with the reference coordinate system and have low interoperability.
4.2.3 Measures taken to improve quality assurance
Many holders of geospatial information work to improve (modernise) information systems in order to ensure the availability of the corresponding sets of geospatial information to the end users, thus promoting shared use of the data. For example, LGIA project Development of geospatial information infrastructure for national geospatial reference data [9], VZD project Development of geospatial information system for geospatial data of the State Land Service [10], modernisation of the system for the distribution of environmental and geological data, and establishment of a single information system for protected nature territories, protected biotopes and protected species.
LGIA has prepared an internal document General procedures for assuring the quality of geospatial information. The document has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of standards ISO 19113, ISO 19114 and ISO 19128, and lays down a general procedure for assuring the quality of geospatial reference data. The data quality requirements are gradually introduced into data set specifications and LGIA data production technology. LGIA is actively involved in the Q-KEN quality work group lead by EuroGeographics [16] and participates in exchange of opinions with other similar European organisations regarding innovations in the field.

The Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs is developing a single specification for information to be included in territory development plans. Absence of such a specification has been the reason why information quality assurance procedures are not implemented in territorial development planning.
4.2.4 Quality certification mechanisms 
Latvia does not expect to introduce a mechanism of mandatory quality certification of geospatial data. Each holder of geospatial data sets may certify the established quality management system on a voluntary basis.
5 Operation and coordination of infrastructure (Art.13)
5.1 General description of the GII
The Ministry of Defence has prepared a Concept of development of geospatial information in Latvia which enables the establishment of a geospatial information infrastructure (GII) in Latvia. The concept has been approved by Cabinet Order No 718 of 20 November 2007 [2]. The concept contains the following provisions: 
· The Ministry of Defence as the authority responsible for the implementation of national policy in geodesy, cartography and geospatial information, in cooperation with holders of geospatial data sets, is responsible for all issues connected with production, maintenance and use of geospatial data, including preparing and updating geospatial data sets and the corresponding metadata, observing existing data standards and specifications, establishing and implementing a single system for classification of geospatial objects, promoting shared use and re-use of data and services, and establishing standardised regulations of use of and access to geospatial data sets;
· The Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs as the body that has taken over tasks and functions of the former Secretariat of the Minister for special assignments in electronic government affairs and as an authority responsible for the implementation of the national electronic government policy, together with administrators of state information systems, is responsible for all issues connected with creating electronic services involving processing of geospatial data and availability of these services on the single national geoportal, including the development of the common national geoportal, development of computer network services for the geoportal, connection of the geoportal with branch-specific geospatial information system, and ensuring the interoperability with the geoportal of the European Commission.
The concept of development of geospatial information in Latvia contains a mandatory provision that the holders of data shall create metadata for geospatial data sets, update the metadata on a regular basis and ensure that the most up-to-date metadata are available on the geoportal.
Pursuant to the concept of development of geospatial information in Latvia, the Law on Geospatial information [4] contains a separate section dealing with establishment and operation of the GII prescribing the establishment of a single national geoportal and ensuring that the following geospatial information services are provided as a minimum:
· discovery services making it possible to search for spatial data sets and services on the basis of the content of the corresponding metadata and to display the content of the metadata;

· view services making it possible, as a minimum, to display, navigate, zoom in/out, pan, or overlay viewable spatial data sets and to display legend information and any relevant content of metadata;

· download services, enabling copies of spatial data sets, or parts of such sets, to be downloaded and, where practicable, accessed directly;

· transformation services, enabling spatial data sets to be transformed with a view to achieving interoperability;

· services allowing direct use of spatial data.

Before the common national geoportal has been established, holders of geospatial data sets shall provide access to various geospatial data services using their own information systems. These services are listed in 2009 report on the monitoring indicators of the INSPIRE directive.
Practical tasks related to establishing the GII are implemented under a number of projects cofinanced by the EU structural funds, such as:
· Project Establishing a common national geospatial information portal and connecting branch-specific GIS with the portal implemented by the State Regional Development Agency (VRAA) [8];
· Project Establishment of an infrastructure for geospatial reference data information implemented by the Geospatial Information Agency of Latvia [9];

· Project Development of a geospatial information system for geospatial data of the State Land Service implemented by the State Land Service [10];
· Project Stage 1 of the information system for territorial development planning in local governments and management and monitoring of the infrastructure and real property implemented by the State Regional Development Agency [11].
All of the above projects are cofinanced under the EU fund operational programme supplement Infrastructure and services sub-activity 3.2.2.1.1 Development of information systems and electronic services. The list of high-priority projects under this activity was approved by Cabinet Order No 584 of 7 October 2008 On the list of high priority projects for the development of electronic government and information society which was later adjusted by Cabinet Order No 147 of 15 March 2010 On the list of high-priority projects for the development of an electronic government and the information society [7].
In spring of 2010, the Ministry of Defence submitted to the Cabinet an information report on the progress of implementation of the concept of development of geospatial information in Latvia and transposition and implementation of the INSPIRE directive [12]. The report states successful implementation of the concept of development of geospatial information in Latvia and indicates the following additional activities:
1. preparing Cabinet regulations pursuant to the responsibilities delegated by the Law on Geospatial information [4], among which the most important are Regulations on the single state geospatial information portal and Regulations on the mandatory content of the regulations governing the use of geospatial data sets and procedure of obtaining a permit;

2. participation and involvement of experts and subordinate institutions of ministries in preparing an EC Regulation on the implementation of the INSPIRE directive as regards interoperability of spatial data sets and services (data themes specified in Annexes II and III of the INSPIRE directive);

3. systematic activities of holders of geospatial data sets in connection with the creation and maintenance of geospatial data sets and corresponding metadata in order to ensure their availability on the common national geospatial information portal, including implementation of projects cofinanced by the European structural funds;

4. establishment of the common national geospatial information portal and gradual improvement of its functionality in order to ensure equal access to geospatial data sets.
5.2 Parties involved in INSPIRE
The Ministry of Defence has established a permanent working group including representatives of all ministries involved in the establishment of an infrastructure for geospatial information [12]. In all, there are ten ministries involved: the Ministry of the Environment, the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of Agriculture, the Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs, the Ministry of Transport, the Ministry of the Interior, the Ministry of Education and Science, the Ministry of Economic Affairs, the Ministry of Healthcare and the Ministry of Culture.

Among the bodies reporting to the ministries, there are holders of geospatial data sets (producers of data), providers of services responsible for ensuring access to geospatial information and services for private individuals and legal entities, local authorities and government institutions, for example the State Rural Service (VZD) reporting to the Ministry of Justice, the Maritime Administration of Latvia Hydrography service reporting to the Ministry of Transport, the State Forest Service and Rural Support Service (LAD) reporting to the Ministry of Agriculture, and VSIA “Latvijas Vides, ģeoloģijas un meteoroloģijas centrs” (State-owned limited liability company “Environment, geology and meteorology agency of Latvia) (LVGMC) reporting to the Ministry of the Environment. The Ministry of Defence operates as a coordinating authority which supervises LGIA which is the producer of the most important geospatial reference data and provider of related services.
Most of the above bodies and service users are indirectly interested in the GII being established as a result of INSPIRE implementation, as they are provided broader access to geospatial data and services based on these data.
5.3 Responsibilities of the responsible parties
The Ministry of Defence has been assigned the responsibility [6] for organising and coordinating implementation of the national policy in geodesy, cartography and geospatial information; by Cabinet Order No 718 of 20 November 2007 [2], the Ministry has been appointed as the authority responsible for coordinating the implementation of the INSPIRE directive.
Pursuant to Paragraph 3 of Cabinet Order No 718 of 20 November 2007, the ministries and bodies reporting to them were assigned the following responsibilities for the establishment and updating geospatial data sets, taking into account data themes specified in Annexes to the INSPIRE directive:
	No
	Data theme
	Annex to the INSPIRE directive and data theme
	Responsible ministry
	Co-responsible ministry

	1
	coordinate reference systems
	Theme I of Annex I
	Ministry of Defence
	 

	2
	geographical grid systems
	Theme II of Annex I
	Ministry of Defence
	Ministry of the Environment

	3
	geographical names
	Theme III of Annex I
	Ministry of Defence
	Ministry of Justice and Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs

	4
	administrative units
	Theme IV of Annex I
	Ministry of Justice
	Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs

	5
	addresses
	Theme V of Annex I
	Ministry of Justice
	 

	6
	cadastral parcels
	Theme VI of Annex I
	Ministry of Justice
	 

	7
	transport networks
	Theme VII of Annex I
	Ministry of Transport
	Ministry of Defence and Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs

	8
	hydrography
	Theme VIII of Annex I
	 
	 

	8.1
	hydrography of sea and port routes
	 
	Ministry of Transport
	 

	8.2
	inland hydrography
	 
	Ministry of Defence
	Ministry of the Environment

	9
	protected sites
	Theme IX of Annex I
	Ministry of the Environment
	Ministry of Justice


	10
	elevation
	Theme I of Annex II
	Ministry of Defence
	 

	11
	land cover
	Theme II of Annex II
	Ministry of Defence
	Ministry of Justice, Ministry of the Environment and Ministry of Agriculture

	12
	orthoimagery
	Theme III of Annex II
	Ministry of Defence
	 

	13
	geology
	Theme IV of Annex II
	Ministry of the Environment
	 

	14
	statistical units
	Theme I of Annex III
	Ministry of Economic Affairs
	 

	15
	buildings
	Theme II of Annex III
	Ministry of Justice
	Ministry of Economic Affairs and Ministry of Defence

	16
	soil
	Theme II of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	Ministry of Agriculture and Ministry of Justice

	17
	land use
	Theme IV of Annex III
	Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs
	Ministry of Agriculture and Ministry of Justice

	18
	human health and safety
	Theme V of Annex III
	Ministry of Healthcare
	Ministry of the Environment and Ministry of Agriculture

	19
	utility and governmental services
	Theme VI of Annex III
	Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs
	Ministry of Economic Affairs

	20
	environmental monitoring facilities
	Theme VII of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs , Ministry of Agriculture and Ministry of Economic Affairs

	21
	production and industrial facilities
	Theme VIII of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	Ministry of Economic Affairs

	22
	agricultural and aquaculture facilities
	Theme IX of Annex III
	Ministry of Agriculture
	 

	23
	population distribution - demography
	Theme X of Annex III
	Ministry of Economic Affairs
	 

	24
	area management (restriction) regulation zones and reporting units
	Theme XI of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	Ministry of Agriculture, Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs and Ministry of Transport

	25
	natural risk zones
	Theme XII of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	Ministry of Interior and Ministry of Agriculture

	26
	atmospheric conditions
	Theme XIII of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	 

	27
	meteorological geographical features
	Theme XIV of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	 

	28
	oceanographic geographical features
	Theme XV of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	 

	29
	sea regions
	Theme XVI of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	 

	30
	bio-geographical regions
	Theme XVII of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	 

	31
	habitats and biotopes
	Theme XVIII of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	 

	32
	species distribution
	Theme XIX of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	 

	33
	energy resources
	Theme XX of Annex III
	Ministry of Economic Affairs
	Ministry of the Environment

	34
	mineral resources
	Theme XXI of Annex III
	Ministry of the Environment
	 


VRAA, a body reporting to the Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs, as the contractor under project Establishing a common national geospatial information portal and connecting branch-specific GIS with the portal [8] is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the common national geoportal.

5.4 Measures taken to promote shared use
Pursuant to the Law on State Administration [14], the state and local government institutions may cooperate both on a specific occasion and on permanent basis, signing interdepartmental agreements or cooperation agreements. This cooperation model is applied also to ensure permanent cooperation for shared use of geospatial information. Thus, for instance, LGIA has signed an interdepartmental agreement with VZD on exchange of geospatial information, the Ministry of Defence has signed an interdepartmental agreement with the Ministry of Interior for regular delivery of geospatial information to bodies reporting to the Ministry of Interior, LGIA has signed a cooperation agreement with LAD for the delivery of up-to-date geospatial information enabling unified administration of Single Area Payments, VZD has signed separate interdepartmental agreements with each government institution enabling it to provide data from the National real estate cadastral information system.
The Ministry of Defence is involved in developing Cabinet Regulations on the mandatory content of regulations governing the use of geospatial data sets and procedure of obtaining a permit. These Cabinet Regulations intend to introduce the use of licences, enabling government or local authorities to perform all activities related to geospatial data necessary for performing their tasks and functions and to make it simpler and faster to obtain these permits. These Regulations will be binding on government as well as local authorities and enterprises designated as holders of geospatial data sets and will promote shared use of geospatial data sets.
The Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs has prepared Regulations regarding the Single national geospatial information portal (not approved as yet) which will be used as the basis for organising cooperation between the administrator of the geoportal and holders of geospatial data sets in order to ensure the availability of geospatial data sets and metadata on the geoportal.
5.5 Cooperation of parties involved
There is no specific procedure for cooperation of the parties involved in the working group. The Ministry of Defence and LGIA try to organise their activities for establishing the GII so that the activities are explained to the public and that all significant authorities may be involved in them. For example, all regulations regarding the establishment of the GII are prepared involving significant authorities that are subject to these regulations (producers of geospatial data sets and service providers). At the same time, among project partners under VRAA project Establishing a common national geospatial information portal and connecting branch-specific GIS with the portal [8] there are also parties, such as VZD and LĢIA.
In order to explain the requirements of the INSPIRE directive and enable the involved parties to follow the INSPIRE activities in Latvian, LGIA has created a special Internet site - http://www.lgia.gov.lv/LGIA/INSPIRE.aspx.

5.6 Access to services via the INSPIRE geoportal
The Commission expects to establish the Community level INSPIRE geoportal by 30 June 2011 [11], whereas the common national geospatial information portal of Latvia is to be established under the project Establishing a common national geospatial information portal and connecting branch-specific GIS with the portal [8] by 2012. With regard to the above mentioned, at present no services are available via the INSPIRE geoportal.
6 Use of geospatial information (Art.14)
6.1 Use of geospatial information services
In the majority of state and local government bodies, development of geospatial services is under way. In some cases, various browsers and applications for accessing information electronically have been developed.
For example:

Access to geospatial reference data produced by LGIA is provided at a special public map view service (http://kartes.lgia.gov.lv/) which enables the user to view all data sets in various scales, search place names, determine location coordinates and other features. LGIA also provides access to the geodetic network database (http://geodezija.lgia.gov.lv/) which stores data of all points of the geodetic network, and the place name database (http://vietvardi.lgia.gov.lv/) which stores information on 38 000 geographical objects in the territory of Latvia (mainly objects whose names are displayed on topographical maps with scale 1:50 000 published by LGIA).
LGIA maintains a permanent GPS base stations system LatPos (http://latpos.lgia.gov.lv/). The unified LatPos system comprises 20 base stations operating continuously (365 days a year) to gather data from navigation satellites and transmitting those to users (surveyors, geodesists, etc). The location of LatPos base stations enables users’ GPS receivers to determine the coordinates with a precision of two decimetres in real time mode (Real Time Kinematic) and with a precision of five millimetres using a stored date (Post Processing).

LGIA has established a special on-line calculator for recalculation of coordinates (http://map.lgia.gov.lv/index.php?lang=0&cPath=2&txt_id=8).The coordinate calculator features the following operations with a precision of ±0.003 m:

· Estimate of geodetic coordinates B,L from plane coordinates x and y for LKS92 values
 [x,y LKS92-->B,L]

· Estimate of plane coordinates x,y LKS92 from values of geodetic coordinates B and L 
 [B,L-->x,y LKS92]

· Estimate of geodetic coordinates B, L and ellipsoid height h from values of geocentric coordinates X,Y,Z [X,Y,Z-->B,L,h]

· Estimate of geocentric coordinates X,Y,Z from values of geodetic coordinates B,L and ellipsoid height h [B,L,h-->X,Y,Z]

· Estimate of normal height from values of geodetic coordinates B,L and ellipsoid height 
[B,L,h-->H]
LGIA provides a geospatial data service included in the common database of geographical names EuroGeoNames established by EurogeoGraphics [17] (http://www.eurogeonames.com:8080/RefAppl3/ReferenceApplication/ReferenceApplication.html).
LAD provides access to geographical information of the Rural Register via a special public maps browser (http://karte.lad.gov.lv/). The Rural Register is a geographic information system which stores information on agricultural land in order to provide single access to data and control of farmers’ applications and aid payments. The Rural Register contains a database of rural blocks with mutually referenced cartographic data and information on related attributes: geographic reference, identification numbers and area information.
VZD has established a portal for publishing data www.kadastrs.lv to enable anyone to obtain on line textual and geospatial data from the National real estate cadastral information system (NĪVKIS) and National address register (VAR) over the territory of the state. The portal comprises public and authorised access sections. The public section contains limited data from the NĪVKIS and VAR information systems.
The Maritime Administration of Latvia Hydrography service in cooperation with PRIMAR [15] provides access to electronic marine navigation maps. The data provided by Latvia are used in a single system alongside similar data provided by other states. Users can obtain data both as a database of electronic maps and geospatial data service (WMS), signing an agreement with PRIMAR of the Hydrography service of the corresponding member state.
The Central Statistical Bureau has established a public homepage (http://www.csb.gov.lv/csp/content/?cat=355) allowing the user to view statistical indicators also as a cartographic image, using the PX-Map program.
6.2 Use of geospatial data sets
Geospatial data sets are used for a variety of purposes, mainly involving the performance of tasks and functions of state and local government bodies.
For example:

LVGMC uses:

· raster and vector data received from LĢIA (orthophoto images, topographic maps in scales 1:10 000, 1:2 000, 1:50 000),
· NĪVKIS geospatial data and data on borders of administrative territories received from VZD,
· data of specially protected territories received from the Nature Conservation Agency,
· statistical data received from the Central Statistical Bureau.

As a provider of services, LVGMC maintains and provides geospatial and textual data from environmental, geology and meteorology information system. The main users of these data are:

· all 118 local governments,
· the State Environmental Service,

· the State Land Service,

· the State Forest Service,

· the Central Statistical Bureau,

· the Nature Conservation Agency.
The Nature Conservation Agency (DAP) uses:

· raster data received from LĢIA (orthophoto images, a topographic map on a 1:10 000 scale, a satellite map),
· NĪVKIS geospatial data received from VZD,
· data from the State Forest Register received from the State Forest Service.
As a provider of services, DAP prepares and provides geospatial data on specially protected nature territories. The main users of the data are:
· local governments, 
· planning regions, 
· private individuals, 
· the State Forest Service, 
· the State Land Service, 
· the State Environmental Service, 
· the State Rural Support Service.
VZD uses:

· raster data received from LGIA (orthophoto imagery, topographical maps in scales of 1:10 000, 1:2 000, satellite maps),

· data of cadastral and topographical measurements in scale of 1:500 received from surveyors,

· data of specially protected nature territories received from DAP.

as a producer of geospatial data, VZP:

· prepares geospatial data of administrative borders and border descriptions;

· carries out cadastral measurements of buildings and prepares geospatial data of buildings;

· prepares cadastral reviews of geospatial data of land plots;

· prepares geospatial data layer for address points.

As a provider of services, VZD maintains and provides geospatial and textual data of the State Address Register and the national real estate cadastral information system. The main users of the data are:
· all 118 local governments,
· the Central Statistical Bureau,

· the Nature Conservation Agency,

· the Corruption Prevention and Combating Bureau,

· the Latvian Geospatial Information Agency,

· VAS „Privatizācijas aģentūra” (State-owned joint-stock company Privatisation agency),

· the Ministry of Latvia,

· the Court Administration (the Department of Courts and Land Registers),

· the State Revenue Service,

· the State Inspectorate for Heritage Protection,

· the State Forest Service,

· the State Environmental Service,

· the Ministry of Agriculture,

· VSIA “Latvijas Vides, ģeoloģijas un meteoroloģijas centrs” (State-owned limited liability company “Environment, geology and meteorology agency of Latvia).
6.3 Use of the GII for general public needs
The general public uses publicly available services specified in Paragraph 6.1 of this report. 
For example:

The statistics page for the portal www.kadastrs.lv shows the following data (number of visits per month):
	Month
	Public section (free of charge)
	Authorised access (paid access)
	Single access (paid access)

	August
	194 982
	48 500
	-

	September
	149 296
	64 476
	-

	October
	161 004
	77 829
	-

	November
	94 429
	72 537
	168

	December
	137 486
	66 745
	251


6.4 Across-the-border use
LGIA is involved in the following projects managed by EuroGeographics: EuroDEM [19], EuroRegionalMap [20], EuroGlobalMap [21] and EuroGeoNames [17] and has provided data on the territory of Latvia prepared in accordance with the project specifications.

VZD is involved in EuroGeographics project EuroBoundaryMap [18] and has provided data on the administrative borders of the Republic of Latvia.
LGIA is involved in continuous exchange of topographic map information with geodesy and cartography authorities of Lithuania and Estonia (Lithuanian Land Service and Estonian Land Service).

The Civil Aviation Agency of Latvia has reached agreements with the corresponding bodies of Estonia and Lithuania on the use of single flight information region (FIR) border data.
6.5 Use of transformation services
Currently, no transformation services are in use. LGIA tests coordination of geospatial data sets between various coordinate systems, as well as transformation of national data in accordance with the technical specifications of data themes in Annex I to the INSPIRE directive (Transport networks).
7 Measures for shared use of data (Art.15)
7.1 Measures for shared use of data by government institutions
Pursuant to the Law on State Administration [14], the state and local government institutions may cooperate both on a specific occasion and on permanent basis, signing interdepartmental agreements or cooperation agreements. This cooperation model is applied also to ensure permanent cooperation for shared use of geospatial information. Thus, for instance, LGIA has signed an interdepartmental agreement with VZD on exchange of geospatial information, the Ministry of Defence has signed an interdepartmental agreement with the Ministry of Interior for regular delivery of geospatial information to bodies reporting to the Ministry of Interior, LGIA has signed a cooperation agreement with LAD for the delivery of up-to-date geospatial information enabling unified administration of Single Area Payments, VZD has signed separate interdepartmental agreements with each government institution enabling it to provide data from the National real estate cadastral information system.
Pursuant to the Law on Geospatial Information [4], the Cabinet of Ministers shall issue special regulations setting out the mandatory content of regulations governing the use of geospatial data sets and the procedure for obtaining a permit. The regulations are designed to introduce the use of permits (licences) enabling state and local government authorities to perform all activities related to geospatial data necessary for performing their tasks and functions without infringement of the intellectual property rights belonging to the holders of the geospatial data sets. The regulations should help standardise the procedure of obtaining the licence and make it quicker, thus promoting shared use of geospatial data sets by government institutions.
7.2 Measures for shared use of data by government institutions, Community institutions and Community bodies
At present, there is no single procedure for shared use of data by government institutions and Community institutions and bodies. Such cooperation occurs on an individual basis, by way of agreements between holders of geospatial data sets and a Community institution or body. Cabinet Regulations on the mandatory content of the regulations governing the use of geospatial data sets and the procedure for obtaining a permit to be prepared by the Ministry of Defence in cooperation with the main holders of geospatial data sets will prescribe a single procedure, which is also binding in cases of shared use of geospatial data sets by government institutions and the Community institutions and bodies, with regard to Commission Regulation (EU) No 268/2010 of 29 March 2010 implementing Directive 2007/2/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the access to spatial data sets and services of the Member States by Community institutions and bodies under harmonised conditions [22].
7.3 Obstacles to shared use and measures taken to overcome them
One of problems identified that may disturb improvement of shared use of geospatial data sets is inconsistent legislation and pricing policy regarding access to geospatial data sets and use thereof, including the observation of intellectual property rights and their commensurability with tasks and functions of state and local government institutions requiring the use of geospatial data sets or geospatial data services. In order to improve legislation, observing principles of the INSPIRE directive, the Ministry of Defence is developing regulations setting out the mandatory content of the regulations governing the use of geospatial data sets and procedure for obtaining a use permit.
8 Aspects of expenses and benefits (Art.16)
8.1 Expenses for implementing the INSPIRE Directive
Exact expenses directly related to the implementation of the INSPIRE directive are difficult to estimate, as these are not recorded separately and are included in total expenses of state and local government institutions. No special study of expenses and benefits related to the implementation of the INSPIRE directive has been carried out in Latvia up until now. In the process of coordination of the INSPIRE directive, the assessment carried out by the European Commission when preparing the INSPIRE directive proposal was used.
Tasks related to the monitoring, reporting and coordinating the implementation of the INSPIRE directive are currently carried out without setting up new institutions or employing additional staff and rely on existing human resources and budget funding. Activities related to the preparation of metadata, harmonisation of geospatial data and development of computer network services are implemented under separate projects. Expenditure planned under these projects has been specified in Cabinet Regulations No 147 of 15 March 2010 On the list of high-priority projects related to electronic government and development of information society [7]:
	No

	Project theme
	Body responsible for implementing the project
	Total eligible expenditure under the project (LVL)

	6.
	Development of geospatial information system for geospatial data of the State Land Service
	State Land Service
	2 300 500.00

	19.
	Establishing a common national geospatial information portal and connecting branch-specific GIS with the portal
	State agency 
State Regional Development Agency
	2 014 446.00

	22.
	Stage 1 of the information system for territorial development planning in local governments and management and monitoring of the infrastructure and real property
	State agency 
State Regional Development Agency
	1 349 228.28

	25.
	Establishment of a national information infrastructure for geospatial reference data
	State agency Geospatial Information Agency of Latvia
	1 000 000.00

	35.
	Stage 2 of the implementation of the information system for territorial development planning in local governments and management and monitoring of the infrastructure and real property in the districts of Latvia
	State agency 
State Regional Development Agency
	875 000.00

	49.
	Establishment of a format for the exchange of data in geographical information systems for the purposes of spatial and territorial planning in accordance with the INSPIRE directive

	State agency 
State Regional Development Agency
	895 000.00


According to estimates made by the State Inspectorate for Heritage Protection, a body reporting to the Ministry of Culture, modernising the register of state-protected heritage objects, including improvement of the database performance, improvement of the quality of data, development of new services and development of a WEB GIS application, requires investment of approximately LVL 68 360.00.
8.2 Benefits observed
Given that the establishment of the GII has just begun, this report does not provide information on the benefits observed; instead, it gives a summary of possible benefits that the introduction of the GII may bring about.
One of the central benefits is availability of geospatial data sets and electronic accessibility of the data, which is a precondition for wider use of geospatial data in various sectors of national economy and state administration. The electronic media offers the following benefits:
· more efficient management of production of geospatial data sets, including improvement of the quality of data and reducing the duplication of data in various state administration institutions; and
· establishment of IT infrastructure for the development of various services to be provided to both the general public and state administration institutions.
Benefits from the introduction of the GII will be indirect and difficult to evaluate as it is impossible to make a precise estimate of expenditure in case of preserving former operation methods and technologies in working with geospatial information.
The common national geoportal will serve as a single point of access to geospatial data sets and services, ensuring faster and more efficient access, and services tailored to the needs of users. The geoportal infrastructure makes it possible to increase the efficiency and reduce the expenses of the development of new information systems or improving existing information systems that involve the processing of geospatial data. This, in turn, opens up new possibilities for developing new electronic services and improving the state administration.
9 Conclusions 

The introduction of the GII in Latvia establishes a legal, methodological and technological basis and helps identify the institutions that must cooperate in order to facilitate the establishment of the GII. On 13 January 2010, the Law on Geospatial information came into force [4]; this law has completely transposed the provisions of the INSPIRE directive and established basic principles for obtaining, maintaining and using geospatial information, specifying, for instance, provisions for mandatory storage of metadata for geospatial data sets, standard regulations for the use of geospatial data sets indicating the most significant national geospatial reference data, etc. The law contains numerous delegations to cabinet regulations that are necessary to ensure that the implementation of the GII is technically successful. The majority of these regulations are to be complete by 2011. Some Cabinet regulations dealing with large-scale data are to be completed by 2010.
A permanent working group of contact persons of the responsible bodies has been established; the main task of the group is exchange of information and coordination of plans for obtaining and maintaining geospatial data and for the establishment and development of geospatial services.
The development of the common national geoportal and its connection with sector-specific GIS takes place under a project [8] cofinanced by the European Regional Development Fund and managed by VRAA; the project is to be completed in 2012.
At the present stage of GII establishment, it is crucial that experts of ministries and institutions reporting to them get involved and cooperate in preparing a European Commission Regulations regarding the implementation of the INSPIRE directive as regards interoperability of spatial data sets and services (data themes specified in Annexes II and III to the INSPIRE directive). They must also coordinate their expected activities in establishing and maintaining geospatial data sets and the corresponding metadata in order to provide access to these at the common national geospatial information portal, including the implementation of the projects mentioned in Paragraph 8.1. of this report.

Taking into account the above considerations, it can be concluded that Latvia is ready to implement the requirements of the INSPIRE directive.
10 Annexes 

10.1 List of institutions – name and contact information
1. The Ministry of Defence (www.mod.gov.lv), Kr. Valdemāra 10/12, Riga, LV–1473, phone: +371-67335184, fax: +371-67212307, e-mail: kanceleja[at]mod.gov.lv

2. The Latvian Geospatial Information Agency (www.lgia.gov.lv), O.Vācieša iela 43, Riga, LV-1004, phone: +371-67064201, fax: +371-67064209, e-mail: info[at]lgia.gov.lv

3. The Ministry of Regional Development and Local Government Affairs (www.raplm.gov.lv), Lāčplēša iela 27, Riga, LV-1011, phone: +371-67770484, fax: +371-67770479, e-mail: pasts[at]raplm.gov.lv

4. The State Regional Development Agency (www.vraa.gov.lv), Elizabetes iela 19, Riga, LV-1010, phone: +371-67079000, fax: +371-67079001, e-mail: pasts[at]vraa.gov.lv

5. The State Land Service (www.vzd.gov.lv), 11.novembra krastmala 31, Riga, LV-1050, phone: +371-67038608, fax:+371-67038829, e-mail: vzd[at]vzd.gov.lv

6. The Ministry of the Environment (www.vidm.gov.lv), Peldu iela 25, Riga, LV-1494, phone: +371-67026448, fax: +371-67820442, e-mail: pasts[at]vidm.gov.lv

7. The Latvian Environment, Geology and Meteorology Centre (www.lvgmc.lv), Maskavas ielā 165, Riga, LV-1019, phone: +371 67 032 600, fax: +371 67 145 154, e-mail: lvgmc[at]lvgmc.lv

8. The Ministry of Agriculture (www.zm.gov.lv), Republikas laukums 2, Riga, LV-1981, phone: +371-67027010, fax: +371-67027512, e-mail: zm[at]zm.gov.lv

9. The Rural Support Service (www.lad.gov.lv), Republikas laukums 2, Riga, LV-1981, phone +371-67027542, fax: +371-67027120, e-mail: lad[at]lad.gov.lv

10. The State Forest Service (www.vmd.gov.lv), 13.janvāra iela 15, Riga, LV-1932, phone: +371-67226600, fax: +371-67211176, e-mail: vmd[at]vmd.gov.lv

11. The State Plant Protection Service (www.vaad.gov.lv), Lielvārdes iela 36/38, Riga, LV-1006, phone +371-67027098, fax: +371-67027302 , e-mail: info[at]vaad.gov.lv

12. The Ministry of Transport (www.sam.gov.lv), Gogoļa iela 3, Riga , LV-1743, phone: +371-67028201, fax: +371- 67028028 , e-mail: satiksmes.ministrija[at]sam.gov.lv 

13. VAS "Latvijas Valsts ceļi" (State-owned joint stock company National Roads of Latvia) (www.lvceli.lv), Gogoļa iela 3, Riga, LV-1050, phone: +371-67028169, fax: +371-67028171, e-mail: lvceli[at]lvceli.lv

14. VAS "Latvijas Dzelzceļš" (State-owned joint stock company Railroads of Latvia) (www.ldz.lv), Gogoļa iela 3, Riga, LV-1547, phone: +371-1181, fax: +371-67820231, e-mail: pr[at]ldz.lv

15. V/A "Civilās aviācijas aģentūra" (State Agency Civil Aviation Agency) (www.caa.lv), Airport "Riga" 10/1, Mārupes novads, LV-1053, phone: +371-67830936, fax: +371-67830967, e-mail: latcaa[at]latcaa.gov.lv

16. The Maritime Administration of Latvia Hydrography service (VAS "Latvijas Jūras administrācija" Hidrogrāfijas dienests) (www.jurasadministracija.lv), Trijādības iela 5, Riga, phone: +371- 67062140, fax: +371- 67860082, e-mail: janis.krastins[at]lhd.lv

17. The Ministry of Economic Affairs (www.em.gov.lv), Brīvības iela 55, Riga, LV – 1519, phone: +371-67013101, fax: +371-67280882, e-mail: pasts[at]em.gov.lv

18. The Central Bureau of Statistics (www.csb.lv), Lāčplēša iela 1, Riga, LV – 1301, phone: +371-67366850, fax: +371-67830137, e-mail: csb[at]csb.gov.lv

19. The State Inspectorate for Heritage Protection (www.mantojums.lv), Mazā Pils iela 19. Rīga, LV-1050, phone: +371-67229272. fax: +371-67228808, e-mail: vkpai[at]mantojums.lv

20. The Ministry of Interior (www.iem.gov.lv), Čiekurkalna 1.līnija 1, korp.2, Riga, LV-1026, phone: +371-67219263, fax:+371 67829686, e-mail: kanceleja[at]iem.gov.lv

21. The Ministry of Healthcare (www.vm.gov.lv), Brīvības iela 72, Riga, LV – 1011, phone: +371-67876000, fax: +371-67876002, e-mail: vm[at]vm.gov.lv

22. The Centre of Health Economics (www.vec.gov.lv), Duntes iela 12/22, Riga, LV – 1005, phone: +371-67501590, fax : + 371-67501591, e-mail: info[at]vec.gov.lv

23. The Ministry of Education and Science (www.izm.gov.lv), Vaļņu iela 2, Riga, LV-1050, phone: +371-67226209, fax: +371-67223905, e-mail: info[at]izm.gov.lv

10.2 List of references used in preparing the report
1. Directive 2007/2/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 March 2007 establishing an Infrastructure for Spatial Information in the European Community (INSPIRE) 
(http://eur-lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=OJ:L:2007:108:0001:0014:EN:PDF).

2. Cabinet Order No 718 of 20 November 2007 On the concept of development of geospatial information in Latvia (http://polsis.mk.gov.lv/view.do?id=2403)

3. Cabinet Order No 737 of 27 November 2007 On development of a single portal for geospatial information (http://polsis.mk.gov.lv/view.do?id=2405).

4. The Law on Geospatial information. Latvijas Vēstnesis (the official journal), 205 (4191), 30 December 2009. (http://www.vestnesis.lv/?menu=doc&id=202999)
5. The database of national execution measures – transposition of the INSPIRE directive (http://eur-lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=CELEX:72007L0002:EN:NOT#FIELD_LV)
6. Cabinet Regulations No 236 of 29 April 2003 The Statutes of the Ministry of Defence (http://www.likumi.lv/doc.php?id=74716)
7. Cabinet Regulations No 147 of 15 March 2010 On the list of high priority projects for the development of electronic government and information society (http://www.likumi.lv/doc.php?id=206622)
8. A description of project Establishing a common national geospatial information portal and connecting branch-specific GIS with the portal (http://www.raplm.gov.lv/uploads/filedir/ES/tris_divi_divi_viens_viens/09_002_1.doc)

9. A description of project Development of geospatial information infrastructure for national geospatial reference data (http://www.raplm.gov.lv/uploads/filedir/ES/tris_divi_divi_viens_viens/09_008.doc)
10. A description of project Development of geospatial information system for geospatial data of the State Land Service (http://www.raplm.gov.lv/uploads/filedir/ES/tris_divi_divi_viens_viens/08_006.doc)
11. A description of project Stage 1 of the information system for territorial development planning in local governments and management and monitoring of the infrastructure and real property (http://www.raplm.gov.lv/uploads/filedir/ES/tris_divi_divi_viens_viens/pasv_1_karta.doc)

12. An information report on the transposition of the INSPIRE directive, the current situation and activities planned in order to start practical implementation of the INSPIRE directive (http://polsis.mk.gov.lv/LoadAtt/file55605.doc)

13. INSPIRE Roadmap (http://inspire.jrc.ec.europa.eu/index.cfm/pageid/44)
14. The Law on State Administration. Latvijas Vēstnesis (the official journal), 94 (2669), 21 June 2002 amended in 2008, 2009 and 2010 (consolidated version http://www.likumi.lv/doc.php?id=63545)
15. PRIMAR is an international cooperation for the provision of a consistent and reliable Electronic Navigational Chart service. PRIMAR is operated by the Norwegian Hydrographic Service. (http://www.primar.no/)
16. The Q‑KEN (The Quality Knowledge Exchange Network) work group established by the Association of European States Cartography and Cadastre Agencies Eurogeographics (http://www.eurogeographics.org/about/quality)
17. The EuroGeoNames database of geographic names established by the Association of European States Cartography and Cadastre Agencies Eurogeographics (http://www.eurogeographics.org/eurogeonames)
18. The EuroBoundaryMap project managed by the Association of European States Cartography and Cadastre Agencies Eurogeographics (http://www.eurogeographics.org/content/euroboundarymap)
19. Digital elevation model prepared by the Association of European States Cartography and Cadastre Agencies Eurogeographics (http://www.eurogeographics.org/content/products-services-eurodem)
20. The EuroRegionalMap project managed by the Association of European States Cartography and Cadastre Agencies Eurogeographics (http://www.eurogeographics.org/content/euroregionalmap-0)
21. The project EuroGlobalMap managed by the Association of European States Cartography and Cadastre Agencies Eurogeographics (http://www.eurogeographics.org/content/euroglobalmap)
22. Commission Regulation (EU) No 268/2010 of 29 March 2010 implementing Directive 2007/2/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the access to spatial data sets and services of the Member States by Community institutions and bodies under harmonised conditions 
23. (http://eur-lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=OJ:L:2010:083:0008:0009:EN:PDF)



















































� The project numbers have been retained as they appear in Cabinet Regulations No 147 of 15 March 2010


� The project has not been approved yet 





